Public Document Pack



Board of Governors of the City of London School

Date: WEDNESDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2019

Time: 11.00 am

Venue: CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL, QUEEN VICTORIA STREET, EC4V 3AL

Members: Deputy James Thomson (Chairman) Tim Levene (Deputy Chairman) Alexander Barr Nicholas Bensted-Smith (Ex-Officio Member) Deputy Keith Bottomley Lesley Cartmell (External Member) Dominic Christian Marianne Fredericks Rosie Gill (External Member) Caroline Haines Andrew Jones (External Member) Alderman Vincent Keaveny Ronel Lehmann (External Member) Lord Levene of Portsoken (External Member) Deputy Edward Lord Paul Madden (External Member) Sylvia Moys Ian Seaton Paul Stein (External Member) Deputy Philip Woodhouse (Ex-Officio Member)

Enquiries: Polly Dunn polly.dunn@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served at the rising of the Board NB Part of this meeting may be subject to audio visual recording

Future Board meeting dates

11 March 2020 – 11am (Guildhall) 10 Jun 2020 – 11am (City of London School) 7 October 2020 – 11am (City of London School) 9 December – 11am (City of London School)

Future Committee meeting dates

12 February 2020 22 May 2020 18 September 2020 (Academic & Education) 20 November 2020 (Governance/Finance & Estates)

John Barradell Town Clerk and Chief Executive

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. MINUTES

5.

To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 8 October 2019.

For Decision (Pages 1 - 6)

4. **GOVERNOR APPOINTMENT**

The Chairman to be heard.

For Decision

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES [TO FOLLOW] To receive the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the Governance Committee meeting held on 22 November 2019.

6. **FINANCE AND ESTATES COMMITTEE MINUTES [TO FOLLOW]** To receive the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the Finance and Estates Committee meeting held on 22 November 2019.

For Information

7. HEAD'S REPORT

Report of the Head of the City of London School.

For Information (Pages 7 - 10)

8. CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL EDUCATION TRUST - DRAFT 2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Report of the Chamberlain.

> For Information (Pages 11 - 28)

 THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL BURSARY FUND INCORPORATING THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIPS & PRIZES FUND - DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 Report of the Chamberlain.

> For Information (Pages 29 - 56)

For Information

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

For Decision

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 8 October 2019.

For Decision (Pages 57 - 66)

14. **NON-PUBLIC GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES [TO FOLLOW]** To receive the draft non-public minutes of the Governance Committee meeting held on 22 November 2019.

For Information

15. **NON-PUBLIC FINANCE AND ESTATES COMMITTEE MINUTES [TO FOLLOW]** To receive the draft non-public minutes of the Finance and Estates Committee meeting held on 22 November 2019.

For Information

16. **NON-PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS** Report of the Town Clerk.

> For Information (Pages 67 - 70)

17. **NON-PUBLIC HEAD'S REPORT** Report of the Head.

For Information

(Pages 71 - 110)

- 18. **BURSAR'S REPORT** Report of the Bursar.
- 19. **PARTNERSHIPS REPORT 2019** Report of the Head.

(Pages 111 - 116)

For Decision

For Information (Pages 117 - 172)

20. **PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY** Report of the Head.

> For Decision (Pages 173 - 178)

21. **PROPOSED 2020/21 REVENUE BUDGET** Joint report of the Head and the Chamberlain.

> For Decision (Pages 179 - 208)

22. **REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND** Joint report of the Head, the Chamberlain and the City Surveyor.

> For Decision (Pages 209 - 218)

23. GATEWAY 6: CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL SUMMER WORKS 2016

Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision (Pages 219 - 222)

24. **CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL PARENT CONTRACT REVIEW AND UPDATE** Joint report of the Comptroller & City Solicitor and Bursar.

For Decision (Pages 223 - 246)

25. **SAFEGUARDING REPORT** Report of the Head.

For Information (Pages 247 - 256)

26. **HEALTH & SAFETY AND WELFARE** Report of the Head.

For Information (Pages 257 - 280)

27. **COMPLIANCE REPORT** Report of the Head.

For Decision (Pages 281 - 284)

a) Appendix 1 - Admissions Policy (Pages 285 - 296)

- b) Appendix 2 Equal Opportunities (Pupils) Policy (Pages 297 302)
- c) Appendix 3 Learning Support and Disability Policy (Pages 303 316)
- d) Appendix 4 Accessibility Policy (Pages 317 332)
- e) Appendix 5 Acceptable Use Policy for Pupils (Pages 333 338)
- f) Appendix 6 Acceptable Use Policy for Staff (Pages 339 346)
- g) Appendix 7 CCTV Policy (Pages 347 354)
- h) Appendix 8 Cyber Security Strategy (Pages 355 366)
- i) Appendix 9 Data Breach Policy (Pages 367 370)
- j) Appendix 10 Data Protection Policy for Exams (Pages 371 380)
- k) Appendix 11 Data Protection Policy for Friends of CLS (Pages 381 384)
- I) Appendix 12 Data Protection Policy (Pages 385 404)
- m) Appendix 13 Data Retention Policy (Pages 405 412)
- n) Appendix 14 Email Retention Policy (Pages 413 416)
- o) Appendix 15 Information Security Policy (Pages 417 456)
- p) Appendix 16 Acceptable Use Guidance for Visitors (Pages 457 458)
- q) Appendix 17 Data Protection a brief guide for staff (Pages 459 462)
- r) Appendix 18 Subject Access Requests a brief guide for staff (Pages 463 464)
- 28. **REGULAR UPDATE OF THE SCHOOL'S RISK REGISTER** Report of the Bursar.

For Information (Pages 465 - 482)

29. ACTION TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information (Pages 483 - 484)

- 30. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD
- 31. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

Part 3 - Confidential Agenda - circulated separately

32. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

To approve the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 8 October 2019.

For Decision

33. **CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL STAFFING MATTERS** Report of the Bursar.

For Information

34. CHAIRMAN'S BUSINESS

The Chairman to be heard.

For Information

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL Tuesday, 8 October 2019

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Governors of the City of London School held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall, London EC2V 7HH on Tuesday, 8 October 2019 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Deputy James Thomson (Chairman) Tim Levene (Deputy Chairman) Deputy Keith Bottomley Lesley Cartmell (External Member) Dominic Christian Marianne Fredericks Rosie Gill (External Member) Caroline Haines Andrew Jones (External Member) Alderman Vincent Keaveny Ronel Lehmann (External Member) Lord Levene of Portsoken (External Member) Paul Madden (External Member) Paul Stein (External Member)

Officers:

Alan Bird	-	Head, City of London School
Charles Griffiths	-	Bursar, City of London School
Dr Richard Brookes	-	Senior Deputy Head, City of London School
Coco Stevenson	-	Deputy Head (Pastoral), City of London School
Tracey Jansen	-	Human Resources Department (from item 20)
Steven Reynolds	-	Chamberlain's Department
Polly Dunn	-	Town Clerk's Department

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Alexander Barr, Nicholas Bensted-Smith, Deputy Edward Lord, Sylvia Moys, Ian Seaton and Deputy Philip Woodhouse.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES

Governors were updated on the possible involvement of the City of London School in the Lord Mayor's Appeal. There had been some issues in getting to arrange this for the City Giving Day 2019, but it was considered a firm possibility for 2020.

RESOLVED, that the public minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2019, be approved as accurate record.

4. PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE ACADEMIC & EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Governors received the public minutes of the Academic & Education Committee meeting held on 27 September 2019.

RESOLVED, that the public minutes of the Academic & Education Committee meeting held on 27 September 2019, be noted.

5. CO-OPTED GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS

Governors considered a report of the Town Clerk regarding co-opted governor appointments.

RESOLVED, that Lesley Cartmell and Andrew Jones be appointed to the City of London School Board of Governors for a term of four years concluding in July 2023.

Lesley Cartmell and Andrew Jones were invited to join the meeting and were welcomed by the Board.

6. HEAD'S REPORT

Governors received a report of the Head regarding an update on general School matters.

The next survey of co-curricular would include personal development focussed questions, the answers to which would be collated as evidence for the personal development section of the forthcoming ISI inspection.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

7. THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION'S INDEPENDENT SCHOOLS AND PARENT GOVERNORS

Governors received a report of the Town Clerk and Comptroller & City Solicitor regarding the City of London Corporation's independent schools and parent governors.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

8. SAFEGUARDING POLICY

Governors considered a report of the Head regarding the Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy. The following matters were raised:

- The DDSL names listed on the front page of the policy did not match with those listed in Annexure 3: Code of Conduct, part A) General. Those on the front page were correct.
- Annexure 3, Code of Conduct, part A) paragraph 3 references the School's HR Business Partner by name. It was felt that a specific name should not be quoted, as it was subject to change.
- For contact purposes the Senior Deputy Head, Richard Brookes, stepped in for the Head should the latter be non-contactable.

- In respect of item 2.1.18 of the policy, Governors confirmed that staff were in the process of migrating to the automated update service for DBS criminal records checks.
- In respect of item 2.1.28, a Governor queried what "suitably vetted" meant. Governors were informed this was covered in the separate policy dedicated to external speakers. The process involved vetting led by several staff members including the School's Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL). Guest speakers were required to wear a lanyard that identified them as non-DBS checked and were consequently required to be under constant supervision throughout their visit.
- In respect of item 10.2, Governors wished that the policy be clearer in explaining that the DSL should be notified regardless of whether the event requiring use of reasonable force had been witnessed or not.
- In Annexure 4, The Prevent Duty, a Governor asked whether the Board would receive a log of incidents of e-safety concerns caught by the IT filter. The current system flagged hundreds of incidents, including nonnefarious websites such as Facebook, which were difficult to report on. It was the intention of the Head to report on this within the forthcoming year. Governors also requested that this report any known instances where a pupil had evaded the IT filter.
- A Governor asked about the School's protocol for occasions when pupils sought private one-to-one conversations with staff. The School had a policy of leaving the door open and if, due to the particularly sensitive nature of the conversation, this was not possible, all doors had clear windows with the exception of one. It was a priority for the School to have this replaced. Governors noted that the key pastoral staff had offices with larger windows, due to the regularity of their contact with pupils.

RESOLVED, that the revised Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy be approved, subject to the agreed changes.

- 9. **QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD** There were no questions.
- 10. **ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT** There was one item of urgent business.

Governors heard from the Town Clerk that the Education Board had formally received the City Schools' Outreach and Partnerships reports at its July 2019 meeting. The work undertaken by the three City Schools had been commended by the Education Board, but Members had asked that, if possible, the governing bodies commission the reports to cover the same periods of time e.g. a calendar year. This was a request that had already been met with agreement by the three Headteachers. This proposal was met with agreement and the

Chairman requested that a consistent approach be taken by all three City Schools.

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the minutes be approved as an accurate record.

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE ACADEMIC & EDUCATION COMMITTEE HELD 27 SEPTEMBER 2019

Governors received the draft minutes of the Academic & Education Committee meeting held on 27 September 2019.

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Academic & Education Committee meeting held on 27 September 2019, be noted.

14. NON-PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

Governors received a report of the Town Clerk regarding non-public outstanding actions of the Board.

15. NON-PUBLIC HEAD'S REPORT

Governors received a report of the Head regarding an update on general School matters.

16. **DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2019-20**

Governors received a report of the Head regarding the 2019-20 Development Plan.

17. BURSAR'S REPORT

Governors considered a report of the Bursar regarding various operational matters at the School.

18. SAFEGUARDING REPORT 2018-19

Governors received the 2018-19 annual safeguarding report of the Head.

19. ADMISSIONS OFFICE RESTRUCTURING

Governors considered a report of the Head regarding the structure of the Admissions Officer.

20. CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL - BREXIT PLANNING

Governors received a report of the Head regarding the School's BREXIT planning.

21. CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL - LOAN APPLICATION TO FUND PHASES 1 TO 4 OF THE SCHOOL'S MASTERPLAN

Governors considered a report of the Head regarding a loan application to fund the School's Masterplan.

22. CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL FINANCIAL INFORMATION DASHBOARD

Governors considered a joint report of the Chamberlain and the Bursar regarding the School's Financial Information Dashboard.

23. **REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 2018/19**

Governors received a report of the Chamberlain and the Bursar regarding the revenue outturn report for 2018/19.

24. KAIWEN EDUCATION COLLABORATION OPPORTUNITY FOR CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL

Governors considered a report of the Head regarding a Kaiwen Education collaboration opportunity.

25. REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENTS WORKS 2020/21

Governors considered a joint report of the Chamberlain, Bursar and City Surveyor regarding the repairs, maintenance and improvement works for 2020/21.

26. COMPLIANCE REPORT

Governors considered a report of the Head regarding School policies and compliance.

27. GATEWAY 6: CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL - THE REPLACEMENT OF THE HEATING PLANT

Governors considered a report of the City Surveyor regarding the Gateway 6 projects report for the replacement of the heating plant at the City of London School.

28. GATEWAY 6: CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL - MODULAR BUILDINGS AT GROVE PARK

Governors considered the Gateway 6 Outcome Report of the City Surveyor regarding the City of London School's Modular buildings at Grove Park.

29. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

There were no questions.

30. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

31. HARDSHIP BURSARY APPLICATIONS

Governors considered a report of the Bursar regarding Hardship Bursary applications.

32. SUPPORT STAFF STRUCTURE

Governors considered a report of the Bursar regarding support staff structure.

33. **CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES RESOLVED**, that the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2019 be approved as accurate record.

34. SCHOOLS HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE

Governors received an update report from the Director of Human Resources.

The meeting ended at 1.18 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Polly Dunn polly.dunn@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Committee(s):	Date(s):
Board of Governors, City of London School	11/12/2019
Subject: Head's Report	Public
Report of: Alan Bird, Head, City of London School Report author: Alan Bird, Head, City of London School	For Information

Summary

This paper provides the Board with an update on key developments in the School since the last meeting of the Board in October 2019.

Recommendation(s)

• Governors are asked to note the report.

Main Report

Academic Update

- Strong public examination results from the summer reported to the Board in October – resulted in a national ranking of 15th in the Sunday Times 'Parent Power' league table. This was an improvement from a ranking of 48th in 2018, and resulted in the School being named as The Sunday Times London Independent Secondary School of the Year 2020.
- 2. The national ranking is based upon a combination A-level grades at A* to B and GCSE grades at A* to A. When one looks at A-level grades at A*, the School was ranked 6th; and when one looks at A-level grades at A*-A, the School was ranked 7th. Based on GCSE grades alone, the School was ranked 10th.
- 3. The Editor of The Sunday Times Schools' Guide, 'Parent Power', wrote as follows.

"A ranking in the top 20 nationally represents an academic high point for City of London School in recent years. But the school is about so much more than academic success. In an era when independent schools often find themselves under fire for being bastions of privilege and entitlement, City of London is a beacon for social mobility, its students recruited from across the capital and reflective of its social and racial diversity.

"Boys are taught to be Kind and a five-year strategy document enshrines this word alongside Ready and Aware as the three pillars on which the school aims to found its future success. Our award recognises this approach alongside a longstanding record for academic achievement, which reached new heights with the publication of this summer's examination results."

- 4. 99 'early' applications to university (i.e. by the deadline for Oxford, Cambridge and the medical schools) were submitted.
- 5. The Pre-U is being withdrawn as a Key Stage 5 qualification. The last year-group to follow the Pre-U in the subjects in which the School offers it is the current 5th Form (Year 11). By September 2021, the School will offer A-levels across the board. The Biology and Mathematics Departments have decided to move to A-level qualifications from September 2020.
- 6. A Third Form pupil has won a national English Heritage competition; a Senior 6th pupil has won first place in the NCH Economics Essay Competition.

Co-Curricular Update

- 7. The following co-curricular highlights have been enjoyed by the School community since the last meeting of the Board.
 - Charity: The School have selected Switchback as the nominated charity for 2019/20. We are pleased that this is aligned with one of Alderman Russell's Mayoral Themes 'Increase Opportunities for Cultural Rehabilitation in Prisons'.
 - Sport: As usual, the Autumn Term is packed with sports fixtures. The record, as of late November, is: Football P98, W53, L30, D15. Basketball P20, W13, L7. Water Polo: P28, W13, L11, D4. The 1st XI Football side are enjoying a particularly successful season and have lost just one game. Their record against 'local rivals' is particularly strong, with victories against Alleyn's, Haberdashers' Aske's, Latymer Upper and Brentwood.
 - Music: The annual Autumn Concert was notable for the quality and range of music. The Music Department choose challenging pieces with the Senior String Orchestra performing Humperdinck's *Hansel and Gretel Prelude*. The Senior String Orchestra tackled Astona Concert Waltz, with the added pressure of having the composer seated in the Great Hall! Also of note was the Junior String Orchestra, who played two pieces from Grieg's Peer Gynt. The evening concluded with some quality Swing and Jazz music. Great efforts are made to give the pupils the opportunity to perform in major concerts and over one hundred boys participated.
 - **Drama:** The Drama Department chose Pink Mist for the Upper School Production (joint with CLSG). It was an ambitious project and, as we have come to expect, was brilliantly delivered.
 - Visiting Speakers: The School continues to host a wide range of visiting speakers. A new initiative this year has been the Lower School Speaker Programme. This is designed to enrich the educational experience of the younger boys and this term we welcomed Dan Jackson (a former AFL player and founder of Foundation Performance) and Aron Phipps (Paralympian).
 - International Honours: The President of the JCC presented an international honours tie to pupil in the 5th Form who fenced for GB in the European Fencing Championship, Budapest.

- Remembrance: CLS goes to considerable efforts to mark Remembrance. Beyond our own Remembrance Assembly and Service, the Chamber Choir sung at the annual Garden of Remembrance Service at St Paul's Cathedral. The CCF participated in the War Widows Parade and the Remembrance Service at Westminster Abbey. Our Chapel Royal Choristers sung at the National Service of Remembrance.
- Educational Visits: There have been over 60 educational visits this term, including overseas trips to Bordeaux, Rome and Venice.

Appendices

• None

Alan Bird

Head, City of London School

T: 020 3680 6400 E: head@cityoflondonschool.org.uk This page is intentionally left blank

Committee(s): Finance & Estates Sub-Committee of the Board of Governors of the City of London School – For information	Date(s): 22 November 2019
Board of Governors of the City of London School – For information	11 December 2019
Subject: City of London School Education Trust – Draft 2018/19 Annual Report and Financial Statements	Public
Report of: The Chamberlain	For Information
Report author: Steven Reynolds	

Draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

- 1. The draft 2018/19 Annual Report and Financial Statements for the City of London School Education Trust (charity number: 1118571) are attached.
- 2. During the year ended 31 March 2019 total funds increased by £158 (2017/18: an increase of £80) to £6,045 (2017/18: £5,887). This movement comprised a donation of £100 (2017/18: £50), and investment income of £58 (2017/18: £30).
- 3. No expenditure was incurred during the year (2017/18: No expenditure was incurred during the year).
- 4. BDO LLP has completed its audit of the Annual Report and Financial Statements. No accounting changes were required to them and BDO LLP intends to give an unqualified opinion. The draft Annual Report and Financial Statements have been submitted to the Finance Committee on 12 November for approval on behalf of the Court of Common Council.
- 5. The Board agreed in June 2019 that the funds of this charity be spent in 2019/20 and approval sought from the Court of Common Council to close the charity, an update on this is provided by the Bursar in his report on the agenda today.

Recommendation

6. It is recommended that members receive this report for information.

Appendices

 Appendix – The City of London School Education Trust – Draft 2018/19 Annual Report and Financial Statements

Contact:

Steven Reynolds, Group Accountant Chamberlains

T: 020 7332 1382 E: <u>steven.reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk</u>

THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL EDUCATION TRUST REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Charity number: 1118571

Trustee's Annual Report and Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2019

Contents	Page
Trustee's Annual Report	2-6
Independent Auditor's Report	7-9
Statement of Financial Activities	10
Balance Sheet	11
Notes to the Financial Statements	12-14

Trustee's Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Reference and Administrative Details

Charity Name:	The City of London School Education Trust
Registered Charity Number:	1118571
Principal Address:	Guildhall, London, EC2P 2EJ
Trustee:	The City of London Corporation
Chief Executive:	The Town Clerk of the City of London Corporation
Treasurer and Banker:	The Chamberlain of London
Solicitor:	The Comptroller and City Solicitor
Auditor:	BDO LLP 55 Baker Street London W1U 7EU

2. Structure, Governance and Management

The Governing Documents and constitution of the charity

The constitution of this charity is set out in the governing document dated 27 March 2007.

Trustee

The body corporate known as The City of London Corporation is the Trustee of The City of London School Education Trust, acting through the Board of Governors of The City of London School.

Policies and Procedures for the Induction and Training of Trustee

The City of London Corporation makes such seminars and briefings available to its Members as it considers are necessary to enable the Members to efficiently carry out their duties. Such events relate to various aspects of the City's activities, including those concerning The City of London School Education Trust.

Organisational structure and decision making process

The charity is administered in accordance with the charity's governing scheme and the City of London Corporation's own corporate governance and administration framework, including Committee Terms of Reference, Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Officer Scheme of Delegations of the City of London Corporation. These governance documents are available from the Town Clerk of the City of London Corporation at the principal address.

Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

2. Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Organisational structure and decision making process (continued)

Each elected Member by virtue of their membership of the Court of Common Council, its relevant committees and sub-committees, has a duty to support the City Corporation in the exercise of its duties as Trustee of the charity by faithfully acting in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the relevant committee or sub-committee, and the City Corporation's agreed corporate governance framework as noted above.

Related Parties

Details of any related party transactions are disclosed in note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Risk identification

The Trustee is committed to a programme of risk management as an element of the Trustee's strategy to preserve the charity's assets, enhance productivity for service users and members of the public.

In order to embed sound practice a Risk Management Group of employed officers has been established by the City of London Corporation to ensure that risk management policies are applied, that there is an ongoing review of risk management activity and that appropriate advice and support is provided to elected Members and officers.

The City of London Corporation has approved a strategic risk register for all of its activities. This register helps to formalise existing processes and procedures and enables the City of London Corporation to further embed risk management throughout the organisation in the exercise of all its functions, including when acting as charity Trustee.

Consequently, a key risk register has been prepared for this charity and has been reviewed by the Trustee. It identifies the potential impact of key risks and the measures which are in place to mitigate such risks.

Charity Governance Code

The Charity Governance Code was published in July 2017. The charity is supportive of the Code and its aim to assist in the development of high standards of governance throughout the sector. The Trustee is currently considering application of the recommended practice to the work of the charity.

3. Objectives and Activities for the Public Benefit

The objects of the charity are:

(1) To advance the education of pupils of the City of London School (the School), children and young people who are not pupils of the School, in particular but not exclusively by providing or assisting in the provision of facilities for education, including social and physical education and education in music and arts; and

Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

(2) To provide or assist in the provision, in the interests of social welfare, of facilities for recreation and other leisure-time occupation for individuals who have the need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances, or for the public benefit at large, with the aim of improving their condition of life.

The Trustee has due regard to the Charity Commission's public benefit guidance when setting objectives and planning activities.

4. Achievements and Performance

During the year there was no expenditure on charitable activities (2017/18: no expenditure on charitable activities).

5. Financial Review

During the year ended 31 March 2019 total funds increased by £158 (2017/18: an increase of £80) to £6,045 (2017/18: £5,887). This was due to donations of £100 and investment income of £58 (2017/18: donations of £50 and investment income of £30).

Going Concern

The Trustee consider the charity to be a going concern for the foreseeable future as detailed in the Accounting Policies note 1 (b).

Reserves Policy

The charity currently only has a restricted fund which was initially set up with a donation in 2007 towards the refurbishment of the School's theatre. Since that time further donations have been received towards a variety of projects and activities in accordance with the objects of the charity. Future expenditure will be dependent upon the nature of the income received by the charity.

Investment Policy

The charity's funds are currently held in cash. Funds which are not required for immediate use (including those which will be required for use at a future date) are placed in interest earning deposits.

Fundraising

Section 162a of the Charities Act 2011 requires charities to make a statement regarding fundraising activities. Although we do not undertake widespread fundraising from the general public, the legislation defines fundraising as "soliciting or otherwise procuring money or other property for charitable purposes". Such amounts receivable are presented in our accounts as donations.

In relation to the above we confirm that all solicitations are managed internally, without involvement of commercial participators or professional fund-raisers, or third parties. The day to day management of all income generation is delegated to the executive team, who are accountable to the trustee.

Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

Our terms of employment require staff to behave reasonably at all times and relevant staff have received training in charity law and funding raising. We have received no complaints in relation to fundraising activities.

6. Plans for Future Periods

The aims for 2019/20 are:

- (1) To continue to advance the education of pupils of the City of London School (the School), children and young people who are not pupils of the School, in particular but not exclusively by providing or assisting in the provision of facilities for education, including social and physical education and education in music and arts; and
- (2) To continue to provide or assist in the provision, in the interests of social welfare, of facilities for recreation and other leisure-time occupation for individuals who have the need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances, or for the public benefit at large, with the aim of improving their condition of life.

7. Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

At the date of approval of this report, the Trustee confirms that:

- so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditor is unaware; and
- the Trustee has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken in order to make itself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Auditor is aware of that information.

8. Statement of Trustee's Responsibilities

The Trustee is responsible for preparing the Trustee's Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with the Charities Act 2011 and Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective from 1 January 2015.

The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the Trustee to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustee is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
- prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity will continue in business.

The Trustee is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that discloses with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable the Trustee to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the applicable Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations, and the provisions of the trust deed. The Trustee is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

9. Adopted and signed for on behalf of the Trustee on 10 December 2019.

Jeremy Paul Mayhew MA MBA Chairman of Finance Committee Guildhall, London Jamie Ingham Clark Deputy Chairman of Finance Committee Guildhall, London

Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustee of The City of London School Education Trust

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of The City of London School Education Trust (the 'charity') for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions related to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

- the Trustee' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
- the Trustee has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustee is responsible for the other information.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustee of The City of London School Education Trust (continued)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Charities Act 2011 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

- the information contained in the financial statements is inconsistent in any material respect with the Trustee' Annual Report; or
- adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustee

As explained more fully in the Trustee' responsibilities statement, the Trustee is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee is responsible for assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustee either intend to liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditor under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with the Act and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustee of The City of London School Education Trust (continued)

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Financial Reporting Council's ("FRC's") website at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charity's Trustee, as a body, in accordance with the Charities Act 2011. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's Trustee those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's Trustee as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Fiona Condron (Senior Statutory Auditor) For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor London

10 December 2019

BDO LLP is eligible for appointment as auditor of the charity by virtue of its eligibility for appointment as auditor of a company under section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).

Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2019

	Note	Restricted	Total	Total Funds
		Fund	Funds 2018/19	2017/18
		£	£	£
Incoming resources:				
Donations		100	100	50
Income from investments				
Interest receivable from investments		58	58	30
Total incoming resources	3	158	158	80
Net movement in funds	-	158	158	80
Reconciliation of funds				
Total funds brought forward	8	5,887	5,887	5,807
Total funds carried forward	8	6,045	6,045	5,887

There are no recognised gains or losses other than as shown in the Statement of Financial Activities above.

All income and expenditure derive from continuing activities.

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

	Note	2019 £	2018 £
Current Assets Cash at bank and in hand		6,045	5,887
Net current assets	7	6,045	5,887
The funds of the charity: Restricted Fund Total funds carried forward	8 _	6,045 6,045	<u> </u>

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Trustee

The notes at pages 12 to 14 form part of these financial statements.

Dr Peter Kane Chamberlain of London 10 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the charity's financial statements.

(a) **Basis of Preparation**

The financial statements of the charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation of investment property and financial investments measured at fair value, and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) Accounting and Reporting by Charities, published in 2015, Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011.

(b) Going Concern

The Trust's future funding will arise from interest receivable on cash balances and donations. The Trust is considered a going concern for the foreseeable future because the Trustee have due regard to the level of cash balances invested and the infrequent nature of voluntary donations and plan activities accordingly.

(c) Cash Flow Statement

The charity has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS102 from the requirement to produce a Statement of Cash Flows on the grounds that it is a small entity.

(d) Income Recognition

All income is recognised once the charity has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

(e) Investment Income

Investment income consists of interest on cash balances, which are invested by the City of London Corporation as set out in Section 5 of the Annual Report.

(f) *Expenditure Recognition*

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity to that expenditure, it is probable that settlement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

(g) Fund Accounting

The funds of the charity consist of restricted donations and interest earned on the cash balance.

(h) *Taxation*

The charity meets the definition of a charitable trust for UK income tax purposes, as set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010. Accordingly, the charity is exempt from UK taxation in respect of income or capital gains under part 10 of the Income Tax Act 2007 or section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

(i) Significant Management Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation and Uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Management do not consider there to be any material revisions requiring disclosure.

2. Tax Status of the Charity

The City of London School Education Trust is a registered charity and as such its income and gains are exempt from income tax to the extent that they are applied to its charitable purposes.

3. Income

Incoming resources consist of donations of £100 (2017/18: £50) and interest received on cash balances of £58 (2017/18: £30).

4. Expenditure

No expenditure was incurred during 2018/19 (2017/18: no expenditure was incurred).

5. Support and Governance Costs

Staff numbers and costs

The charity does not employ any staff. Officers of the City of London Corporation provide administrative assistance to the charity when required, but this is not considered material and is not separately calculated by the City of London Corporation. It is consequently not possible to quantify this assistance in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Auditors' remuneration and fees for external financial services

The City of London Corporation's external auditor audits this charity as one of the numerous charities administered by the City Corporation. The City Corporation does not attempt to apportion the audit fee between all the different charities but prefers to treat it as part of the cost to their private funds. No other external financial services were provided for the charity during the year or in the previous year.

6. Other Items of Expenditure

Trustee's expenses

Members of the City of London Corporation acting on behalf of the Trustee received no remuneration or reimbursement of expenses during the current or previous year.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

RestrictedRestrictedFundFund20192018££Current Assets6,0455,887Total Net Current Assets6,045

7. Analysis of Net Assets by Fund at 31 March 2019

8. Summary of Funds and Movements during the year

At 31 March 2019	Fund balances brought forward	Income	Expenditure	Gains and (losses)	Fund balances carried forward
	£	£	£	£	£
Restricted Fund	5,887	158	-	-	6,045
Total Funds	5,887	158	-	-	6,045

At 31 March 2018	Fund balances brought forward	Income	Expenditure	Gains and (losses)	Fund balances carried forward
	£	£	£	£	£
Restricted Fund	5,807	80	-	-	5,887
Total Funds	5,887	80	-	-	5,887

Notes to the Funds:

Restricted Fund

The restricted fund was initially set up with a donation in 2007 towards the refurbishment of the School's theatre. The purpose of this fund is to receive further donations, and undertake works towards a variety of projects and activities, such as the works in relation to the refurbishment of the School's Library during 2015/16 and 2016/17. The fund will continue to support projects in the future.

9. Details of related parties and wider networks

The City of London Corporation is also the Trustee of a number of other charitable Trusts. These charities do not undertake transactions with the City of London School Education Trust.

A full list of these charities is available on application to the Chamberlain of London.

This page is intentionally left blank

Committee(s): Finance & Estates Sub-Committee of the Board of Governors of the City of London School – For information	Date(s): 22 November 2019
Board of Governors of the City of London School – For information	11 December 2019
Subject: The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund – Draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019	Public
Report of: The Chamberlain	For Information
Report author: Steven Reynolds	

Draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

- 1. The draft 2018/19 Annual Report and Financial Statements for The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity 2) are attached.
- The governing scheme approved by the Charity Commission for England and Wales on 1 December 2011 directs that The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity number: 276654-1) shall be treated as forming part of The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity number: 276654) solely for the purpose of Part II (registration) and Part VI (accounting) of the Charities Act 2011.
- 3. During the year ended 31 March 2019 total funds decreased by £22,750 (2017/18: total funds increased by £152,595) to £4,000,527 (2017/18: £4,023,277). This increase comprised the following:
 - i) a net loss on investments of \pounds 36,124 (2017/18: a net gain of \pounds 28,517);
 - ii) investment income of £141,509 (2017/18: £126,621) and donations and legacies of £0 (2017/18: £20,590); and
 - iii) expenditure on charitable activities of £128,135 (2017/18: £23,133) which was made up of thirteen bursary awards (2017/18: three bursary awards and one prize).
- 4. BDO LLP has completed its audit of the Annual Report and Financial Statements. No accounting changes were required to them and BDO LLP intends to give an unqualified opinion. The draft Annual Report and Financial

Statements have been submitted to the Finance Committee on 12 November for approval on behalf of the Court of Common Council.

Recommendation

5. It is recommended that members receive this report for information.

Appendices

 Appendix – The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund – Draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Contact:

Steven Reynolds, Group Accountant Chamberlains

T: 020 7332 1382 E: <u>steven.reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk</u>

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

of

THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL BURSARY FUND (charity number: 276654)

INCORPORATING

THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIPS AND PRIZES FUND (charity number: 276654-1)

Trustee's Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Contents	Page
Trustee's Annual Report	2-6
Independent Auditor's Report	8-10
Statement of Financial Activities	11
Balance Sheet	12
Notes to the Financial Statements	13-24

Trustee's Annual Report for the year ended to 31 March 2019

1. Reference and Administration Details

Charity Names:	The City of London School Bursary Fund 'charity 1' incorporating:
	The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund 'charity 2'.
Registered Charity Numbers:	The City of London School Bursary Fund: 276654
	The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund: 276654-1
Principal Address:	Guildhall, London EC2P 2EJ
Trustee:	The City of London Corporation
Chief Executive:	The Town Clerk of the City of London Corporation
Treasurer:	The Chamberlain of London
Solicitor:	The Comptroller and City Solicitor
Banker:	Lloyds Bank plc City Office, PO Box 72 Bailey Drive Gillingham, Kent ME8 OLS
Investment Fund Managers:	Artemis Investment Management LLP
Auditor:	BDO LLP 55 Baker Street London W1U 7EU

2. Structure, Governance and Management

The Governing Documents and constitution of the charity

The administration of The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity registration: 276654 – "charity 1"), incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity registration: 276654-1 "charity 2") is set out in the governing Scheme approved by The Charity Commission for England and Wales on 1 December 2011. This Scheme replaced the previous charitable trust deed dated 22 September 1978 for The City of London School Bursary Fund, and the various individual governing documents of The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund.

THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL BURSARY FUND INCORPORATING THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIPS & PRIZES FUND Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

2. Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

This scheme further directs that The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity number: 276654-1 "charity 2") shall be treated as forming part of The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity registration: 276654 "charity 1") solely for the purpose of Part II (registration) and Part VI (accounting) of the Charities Act 2011.

Trustee

The body corporate known as The City of London Corporation is the Trustee of The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity registration: 276654 "charity 1") and The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity number: 276654-1 "charity 2"), acting through the Board of Governors of the City of London School.

Policies and Procedures for the Induction and Training of the Trustee

The City of London Corporation makes such seminars and briefings available to its Members as it considers are necessary to enable the Members to efficiently carry out their duties. Such events relate to various aspects of the City's activities, including those concerning The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund.

Organisational structure and decision-making process

The charity is administered in accordance with the charity's governing scheme and the City of London Corporation's own corporate governance and administration framework, including Committee Terms of Reference, Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Officer Scheme of Delegations of the City of London Corporation. These governance documents are available from the Town Clerk of the City of London Corporation at the principal address. The Bursary Committee are also Members of the City of London Corporation.

Each elected Member by virtue of their membership of the Court of Common Council, its relevant committees and sub-committees, has a duty to support the City Corporation in the exercise of its duties as Trustee of the charity by faithfully acting in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the relevant committee or sub-committee, and the City Corporation's agreed corporate governance framework as noted above.

Related Parties

Details of any related party transactions are disclosed in note 10 to the Financial Statements.

Risk identification

The Trustee is committed to a programme of risk management as an element of the Trustee's strategy to preserve the charity's assets, enhance productivity for service users and members of the public.

In order to embed sound practice a Risk Management Group of employed officers has been established by the City of London Corporation to ensure that risk management policies are applied, that there is an ongoing review of risk management activity and that appropriate advice and support is provided to elected Members and officers.

The City of London Corporation has approved a strategic risk register for all of its activities. This register helps to formalise existing processes and procedures and enables the City of London Corporation to further embed risk management throughout the organisation in the exercise of all its functions, including when acting as charity trustee.



Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

Consequently, a key risk register has been prepared for this charity and has been reviewed by the Trustee. It identifies the potential impact of key risks and the measures which are in place to mitigate such risks.

Charity Governance Code

The Charity Governance Code was published in July 2017. The charity is supportive of the Code and its aim to assist in the development of high standards of governance throughout the sector. The Trustee is currently considering application of the recommended practice to the work of the charity.

3. Objectives and Activities for the Public Benefit

<u>Object of charity 1 – The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity registration:</u> 276654)

The object of the charity is the promotion of education (including physical training) by the provision of bursaries and other forms of financial assistance for fees and/or other costs incurred through attendance at the School to enable pupils to further their education at the School by for example providing financial assistance to those who:-

- (1) would not be able to enter the School having been accepted; or
- (2) having commenced education at the School would not be able to continue their education at the School.

<u>Object of charity 2 – The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund (charity number: 276654-1)</u>

The object of the charity is to further the education (including physical training) of pupils attending the School, former pupils of the School or pupils of other schools with whom the School has cooperated under clause 7(11) of this Scheme, by the provision of scholarships, prizes or other suitable rewards or marks of distinction.

The charity has established its grant making policy to achieve its objects, as laid out above, for the public benefit. Applications are assessed via a robust process to ensure that proposed activities for funding will be supported by adequate and appropriate resources and will be used only for activities that match the charity's criteria. Grants are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities when they have been approved by the Trustee and notified to the beneficiaries.

The Trustee has due regard to the Charity Commission's public benefit guidance when setting objectives and planning activities.

4. Targets, Achievements and Performance for 2018/19

The aim for the City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) during 2018/19 was to continue to contribute towards the fees payable to the School of pupils who but for financial assistance, having commenced at the School, would be unable to continue at, or to enter the School having been accepted. 13 bursaries (2017/18: three bursaries) were awarded during the year amounting

Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

to £127,841 (2017/18: £22,309). There were no contributions in the year towards the costs of uniforms or school trips for pupils who were in receipt of bursaries (2017/18: £0).

The aim for the City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund (charity 2) during 2018/19 was to continue to assist children to study various subjects at the School and to assist in further education. No prizes were allocated in the year from this fund (2017/18: one prize amounting to £530). For administrative purposes, all the Prizes awarded in 2018/19 were funded from other sources whilst the School reviews its Scholarships and Prizes funding.

5. Financial Review

During the year ended 31 March 2019 total funds reduced by £22,750 (2017/18: total funds increased by £152,595) to £4,000,527 (2017/18: £4,023,277). This movement comprised the following:

- i) investment income of £141,509 (2017/18: £126,621). There were no donations (2017/18: £20,590);
- ii) expenditure on charitable activities of £128,135 (2017/18: £23,133) which was largely made up of 13 bursary awards but no prizes (2017/18: three bursary awards and one prize). Further prizes were awarded but were funded by the school's budget; and
- iii) a net loss on investments of £36,124 (2017/18: a net gain of £28,517).

Going Concern

The Trustee considers the charity to be a going concern for the foreseeable future as detailed in the Accounting Policies note 1 (b).

Reserves Policy

The Reserves Policy is to maintain the restricted and endowment funds of the charity in investments in the Charities Pool administered by the City of London Corporation and use the investment income in accordance with the objectives of the charity. The income arising from these investments is distributed in accordance with the objectives outlined in section 3.

Investment Policy

The charity's investments are held in units of The City of London Charities Pool. The Charities Pool is a Common Investment Fund operating in a similar way to a unit trust. It enables the City of London Corporation to "pool" small charitable investments together and consequently obtain better returns than would be the case if investments were made individually. The investment policy of the Charities Pool is to provide a real increase in annual income in the long term whilst preserving the value of the capital base. The annual report and financial statements of the Charities Pool are available from the Chamberlain of London.

Fundraising

Section 162a of the Charities Act 2011 requires charities to make a statement regarding fundraising activities. Although we do not undertake widespread fundraising from the general

Page₅36

Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

public, the legislation defines fundraising as "soliciting or otherwise procuring money or other property for charitable purposes". Such amounts receivable are presented in our accounts as donations.

In relation to the above we confirm that all solicitations are managed internally, without involvement of commercial participators or professional fund-raisers, or third parties. The day to day management of all income generation is delegated to the executive team, who are accountable to the trustee.

Our terms of employment require staff to behave reasonably at all times and relevant staff have received training in charity law and funding raising. We have received no complaints in relation to fundraising activities.

6. Plans for Future Periods

The aims for 2019/20 are:

- i) for The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) to continue to contribute towards pupils' fees, in accordance with the School's means tested Bursary programme, and where financial hardship would cause the pupils to be unable to continue at the School, and to contribute to the cost of uniforms, school trips etc. for pupils from disadvantaged backgrounds; and
- for The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund (charity 2) to continue to assist children to study various subjects at the School, or to assist in further education. The School will continue to fund some of the larger annual prizes that it awards.

7. Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

At the date of approval of this report, the Trustee confirms that:

- so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditor is unaware; and
- the Trustee has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken in order to make itself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Auditor is aware of that information.

8. Statement of Trustee's Responsibilities

The Trustee is responsible for preparing the Trustee's Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Charities Act 2011 and Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective from 1 January 2015.

The law applicable to charities in England & Wales requires the Trustee to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources of the charity for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustee is required to:

Page₅37

Trustee's Annual Report (continued)

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity will continue in business.

The Trustee is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that discloses with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable the Trustee to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the applicable Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations, and the provisions of the trust deed. The Trustee is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

9. Adopted and signed for on behalf of the Trustee on 10 December 2019.

Jeremy Paul Mayhew MA MBA Chairman of Finance Committee Guildhall, London Jamie Ingham Clark Deputy Chairman of Finance Committee Guildhall, London

Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustee of The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund (the 'charity') for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions related to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

- the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
- the Trustee has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustee of The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustee is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Charities Act 2011 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

- the information contained in the financial statements is inconsistent in any material respect with the Trustee's Annual Report; or
- adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustee

As explained more fully in the Trustee's responsibilities statement, the Trustee is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee is responsible for assessing the charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustee either intends to liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Page540

Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustee of The City of London School Bursary Fund incorporating The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditor under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with the Act and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Financial Reporting Council's ("FRC's") website at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charity's Trustee, as a body, in accordance with the Charities Act 2011. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's trustee those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's trustee as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Fiona Condron (Senior Statutory Auditor) For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor London

10 December 2019

BDO LLP is eligible for appointment as auditor of the charity by virtue of its eligibility for appointment as auditor of a company under section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).

Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2019

	Note	Unrestricted Fund	Restricted Fund	Endowment Fund	Total Funds 2018/19	Total Funds 2017/18
		£	£	£	£	£
Incoming resources:						
Donations		-	-	-	-	20,590
Income from investments						
Managed investment income		3,664	3,577	131,904	139,145	125,479
Interest receivable		256	309	1,799	2,364	1,142
Total incoming resources	3	3,920	3,886	133,703	141,509	147,211
Resources expended: Charitable activities						
Bursaries awarded		2,984	-	124,857	127,841	22,309
Prizes awarded		-	-	-	-	530
Support costs – bursaries	5		-	294	294	294
Total resources expended	4	2,984	-	125,151	128,135	23,133
Net (losses)/gains on investments	7	(1,068)	(1,056)	(34,000)	(36,124)	28,517
Net movement in funds		(132)	2,830	(25,448)	(22,750)	152,595
Reconciliation of funds Total funds brought forward	9	126,502	143,430	3,753,345	4,023,277	3,870,682
Total funds carried forward	9	126,370	146,260	3,727,897	4,000,527	4,023,277
i otur runus curricu tor waru	,	120,570	110,200	5,121,071	.,,	1,023,211

There are no recognised gains or losses other than as shown in the statement of financial activities above.

All incoming resources and resources expended derive from continuing activities.

THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL BURSARY FUND INCORPORATING THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIPS AND PRIZES FUND

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

Note **2019** 2018

		£	£
Fixed Assets Managed Investments	7	3,810,161	3,802,286
Current Assets Cash at bank and in hand		232,778	234,934
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year	8	(42,412)	(13,943)
Net Current Assets		190,366	220,991
Total Assets less Current Liabilities	8	4,000,527	4,023,277
The funds of the charity			
Unrestricted Designated Fund		126,370	126,502
Restricted Fund Expendable Endowment Fund		146,260 3,432,899	143,430 3,455,641
Permanent Endowment Fund		294,998	297,704
Total funds	9	4,000,527	4,023,277

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Trustee.

The notes at pages 13 to 24 form part of these accounts.

Dr Peter Kane Chamberlain of London 10 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the year and in the preceding year in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the charity's financial statements.

(a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation of investment property and financial investments measured at fair value, and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) Accounting and Reporting by Charities, published in 2015, Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011.

The administration of The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity registration: 276654 – "charity 1"), incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity registration: 276654-1 "charity 2") is set out in the governing Scheme approved by The Charity Commission for England & Wales on 1 December 2011. This scheme directs that The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity 2) shall be treated as forming part of The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) solely for the purpose of Part II (registration) and Part VI (accounting) of the Charities Act 2011.

(b) Going Concern

The Trust is considered a going concern for the foreseeable future as the Trustee has due regard to maintaining the capital base and only the investment income is generally used in furtherance of the objectives of the Trust.

(c) Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS102 from the requirement to produce a statement of cash flows on the grounds that it is a small entity.

(d) Income Recognition

All income is recognised once the charity has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably. in the charity's funds.

(e) Investment income

Investment income consists of distributions from the Charities Pool and interest receivable on cash balances. The Charities Pool is a Common Investment Fund operating in a similar way to a unit trust. It enables the City of London Corporation to "pool" small charitable investments together and consequently obtain better returns than would be the case if investments were made individually.

(f) *Expenditure Recognition*

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity to that expenditure, it is probable that settlement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Bursaries, Scholarships and Prizes awarded

Bursaries are accounted for when the recipient has a reasonable expectation that they will receive the bursary and where any conditions attached to the bursary are outside the control of the Fund. Scholarships and Prizes are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the Trust to the expenditure.

(h) Investments

Investments are valued annually at the middle market price at the close of business on 31 March. Gains and losses for the year on investments held as fixed assets are included in the Statement of Financial Activities. The unrealised gains/(losses) on investments at the balance sheet date are included.

(i) Fund Accounting

The funds of the charities consist of an Unrestricted Designated Fund, a Restricted Fund and an Endowment Fund which comprises permanent and expendable funds.

(j) Taxation

The charity meets the definition of a charitable trust for UK income tax purposes, as set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010. Accordingly, the charity is exempt from UK taxation in respect of income or capital gains under part 10 of the Income Tax Act 2007 or section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

(k) Significant Management Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation and Uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Management do not consider there to be any material revisions requiring disclosure.

2. Tax Status of the Charity

The City of London School Bursary Fund is a registered charity and as such its income and gains are exempt from income tax to the extent that they are applied to its charitable purposes.

The City of London School Scholarships and Prize Funds is a registered charity and as such its income and gains are potentially exempt from income tax to the extent that they are applied to its charitable purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

3. Income

Income is analysed as follows for The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity 2):

	Charity 1	Charity 2	Total	Total
	Bursary	Scholarships	2018/19	2017/18
	Fund	& Prizes		
		Fund		
	£	£	£	£
Donations	-	-	-	20,590
Investment Income				
Managed investment income	101,090	38,055	139,145	125,479
Interest receivable	1,763	601	2,364	1,142
Total Income	102,853	38,656	141,509	147,211

Donations:

No donations were received during the year (2017/18: £20,590).

Investment Income:

Income for the year derived from the investments in The City of London Charities Pool amounting to £139,145 (2017/18: £125,479) noted in 1(e) and interest received on cash balances of £2,364 (2017/18: £1,142).

4. Expenditure

Expenditure is analysed as follows for The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity 2):

	Charity 1	Charity 2	Total	Total
	Bursary	Scholarships	2018/19	2017/18
	Fund	& Prizes		
		Fund		
	£	£	£	£
Charitable Activities				
Bursaries Awarded	126,147	1,694	127,841	22,309
Scholarships & Prizes	-	-	-	530
Support Costs – bursaries	294	-	294	294
Total Expenditure	126,441	1,694	128,135	23,133

Charitable activities consisted of:

i) 13 bursaries (2017/18: three bursaries) awarded during the year amounting to £127,841 (2017/18: £22,309). The bursaries were awarded to individuals and therefore specific details cannot be disclosed;

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

4. Expenditure (continued)

- ii) No prizes were awarded (2017/18: one prize amounting to £530);
- iii) Support costs for bursary administration of £294 were charged by the City of London Corporation during the year (see note 5 below) (2017/18: £294).

5. Support and Governance Costs

Staff numbers and costs

The charity does not employ any staff. Officers of the City of London Corporation provide administrative assistance to the charity when required, but this is not considered material and is not separately calculated by the City of London Corporation. There are however some specific administration services concerned with Bursary Administration which are charged directly to the charities. The charge in 2018/19 amounted to £294 (2017/18: £294).

Auditor's remuneration and fees for external financial services

The City of London's external auditor audits this charity as one of the numerous charities administered by the City of London Corporation. The City of London Corporation does not attempt to apportion the audit fee between all the different charities but prefers to treat it as part of the cost to its private funds. No other external financial services were provided for the Trust during the year or in the previous year.

6. Other Items of Expenditure

Trustee's expenses

Members of the City of London Corporation acting on behalf of the Trustee received no remuneration or reimbursement of expenses during the current or previous year.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

7. Investment Assets

The value and cost of investments for The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) incorporating The City of London Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity 2) comprises:

	Unrestric-	Restricted	Endowm-	Total	Total
	ted	Restricted	ent	I Utal	Total
	Fund	Fund	Funds	2019	2018
	£	£	£	£	£
<u>Charity 1 – Bursary Fund</u>					
Market Value 1 April	98,824	-	2,663,214	2,762,038	2,312,396
Purchase of Charities Pool units ¹	4,791	-	28,125	32,915	428,772
Net Investment Gain / (Loss)	(1,068)	-	(25,206)	(26,274)	20,870
Market Value 31 March	102,547	-	2,666,132	2,768,679	2,762,038
Units in Charities Pool	11,760	-	305,749	317,509	313,868
<u> Charity 2 – Scholarships &</u>					
Prizes Fund					
Market Value 1 April	-	96,307	943,941	1,040,248	863,088
Purchase of Charities Pool units ¹	-	5,099	5,984	11,083	169,513
Net Investment Gain / (Loss)	-	(1,056)	(8,793)	(9,849)	7,647
Market Value 31 March	-	100,350	941,132	1,041,482	1,040,248
Units in Charities Pool	-	11,508	107,928	119,436	118,210
Total Market Value 31 March	102,547	100,350	3,607,264	3,810,161	3,802,286
Total Cost when purchased	66,783	65,512	2,296,869	2,429,164	2,385,166
Total units in Charities Pool	11,760	11,508	413,677	436,945	432,078

(1) The School's Board of Governors agreed at its meeting on 14 June 2018 that cash of £43,998 would be invested in The City of London Charities Pool. Accordingly, a total of 4,867 units were purchased at £9.04 per unit on 1 October 2018.

The geographical spread of listed investments at 31 March was as follows:

	2019	2018
	£	£
Equities:		
UK	2,945,255	2,967,292
Overseas	434,358	466,024
Bonds: UK	-	24,580
Pooled Units: UK	259,091	258,210
Cash Held By Fund Manager	171,457	86,180
Total Funds	3,810,161	3,802,286

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

7. Investment Assets (continued)

The majority of the charity's resources are invested within the Charities Pool administered by the City of London Corporation and interest is received from the Chamberlain of London on cash balances held on behalf of the Trust. The investments are managed by Artemis Investment Management Limited and the performance of the fund is measured against the Fund manager benchmark (FTSE All Share Index).

As at 31 March 2019, the Fund achieved a gross return of 4.05% compared to the FTSE All Share Index return of 6.36%. Over 3 years, the fund achieved a return of 8.31% compared to the FTSE All Share Index return of 9.51%. Over 5 years, the fund achieved a return of 6.77% compared to the FTSE All Share Index return of 6.10%.

	3 Years	5 Years
Fund	8.31%	6.77%
FTSE All Share	9.51%	6.10%
Comparison	-1.20%	+0.67%

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

8. Analysis of Net Assets by Fund

The net assets for The City of London School Bursary Fund (charity 1) incorporating The City of London School Scholarships & Prizes Fund (charity 2) comprises:

As at 31 March 2019			Endowme	Endowment Funds		
	Unrestricted	Restricted	Permanent	Expendable	Total	Total
	Fund	Fund			2019	2018
<u>Charity 1 – Bursary Fund</u>	£	£	£	£	£	£
Investments - 31 March	102,547	-	294,998	2,371,134	2,768,679	2,768,297
Fixed Assets	102,547	-	294,998	2,371,134	2,768,679	2,768,297
Current Assets	23,823	-	-	130,162	153,985	175,761
Current Liabilities (1)	-	-	-	(42,412)	(42,412)	(13,943)
Net Current Assets	23,823	-	-	87,750	111,573	161,818
Total Net Assets	126,370	-	294,998	2,458,884	2,880,252	2,930,115
<u>Charity 2 – Scholarships</u> <u>&</u>						
Prizes Fund						
Investments - 31 March	-	100,350	-	941,132	1,041,482	1,033,990
Fixed Assets	-	100,350	-	941,132	1,041,482	1,033,990
Current Assets	-	45,910	-	32,883	78,793	59,172
Current Liabilities (1)	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net Current Assets	-	45,910	-	32,883	78,793	59,172
Total Net Assets	-	146,260	-	974,015	1,120,275	1,093,162
Total Net Assets (charity 1 and 2)	126,370	146,260	294,998	3,432,899	4,000,527	4,023,277

(1) Current liabilities amount to £42,412 and represent bursaries awarded by the Trust for the Summer term 2019 (2017/18: £13,943).

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018			Endowme	ent Funds		
	Unrestricted	Restricted	Permanent	Expendable	Total	Total
	Fund	Fund			2018	2017
<u> Charity 1 – Bursary Fund</u>	£	£	£	£	£	£
Investments - 31 March	99,037	-	297,704	2,371,556	2,768,297	2,312,396
Fixed Assets	99,037	-	297,704	2,371,556	2,768,297	2,312,396
Current Assets	27,679	-	-	148,082	175,761	513,668
Current Liabilities (1)	-	-	-	(13,943)	(13,943)	(9,119)
Net Current Assets	27,679	-	-	134,139	161,818	504,549
Total Net Assets	126,716	-	297,704	2,505,695	2,930,115	2,816,945
<u>Charity 2 – Scholarships</u> <u>&</u>						
<u>Prizes Fund</u> Investments - 31 March	-	96,307	-	937,683	1,033,990	863,088
Fixed Assets	-	96,307	-	937,683	1,033,990	863,088
Current Assets	-	-	-	59,172	59,172	190,649
Current Liabilities (1)	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net Current Assets	-	-	-	59,172	59,172	190,649
Total Net Assets	-	96,307	-	996,855	1,093,162	1,053,737
Total Net Assets (charity 1 and 2)	126,716	96,307	297,704	3,502,550	4,023,277	3,870,682

8. Analysis of Net Assets by Fund (continued)

(1) Current liabilities amount to £13,943 and represent bursaries awarded by the Trust for the Summer term 2018 (2016/17: £9,119).

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

9. Movement in Funds

The total movement in funds is show below and separately for each charity:

Total Movement in Funds

At 31 March	Fund	Income	Expend-	Transfers	Gains and	Fund
2019	Balance		iture		Losses	Balances
	Brought					Carried
	Forward					Forward
	£	£	£	£	£	£
Unrestricted:						
Designated (1)	126,502	3,920	(2,984)	-	(1,068)	126,370
Restricted (2)	143,430	3,886	-	-	(1,056)	146,260
Endowments:						
Expendable (3)	3,455,641	122,932	(125,151)	10,771	(31,294)	3,432,899
Permanent (4)	297,704	10,771	-	(10,771)	(2,706)	294,998
Total Funds	4,023,277	141,509	(128,135)	_	(36,124)	4,000,527

At 31 March	Fund	Income	Expend-	Transfers	Gains and	Fund
2018	Balance		iture		Losses	Balances
	Brought					Carried
	Forward					Forward
	£	£	£	£	£	£
Unrestricted:						
Designated (1)	123,087	3,380	-	-	35	126,502
Restricted (2)	140,399	3,274	(180)	-	(63)	143,430
Endowments:						
Expendable (3)	3,312,198	140,557	(22,953)	-	25,839	3,455,641
Permanent (4)	294,998	-	-	-	2,706	297,704
Total Funds	3,870,682	147,211	(23,133)	-	28,517	4,023,277

Movement in Funds of charity 1 – The City of London School Bursary Fund

At 31 March	Fund	Income	Expend-	Transfers	Gains and	Fund
2019	Balance		iture		Losses	Balances
	Brought					Carried
	Forward					Forward
	£	£	£	£	£	£
Unrestricted:						
Designated (1)	126,502	3,920	(2,984)	-	(1,068)	126,370
Endowments:						
Expendable (3)	2,505,909	88,162	(123,457)	10,771	(22,501)	2,458,884
Permanent (4)	297,704	10,771	-	(10,771)	(2,706)	294,998
Total Funds	2,930,115	102,853	(126,441)	-	(26,275)	2,880,252

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

At 31 March Fund Income Expend-Transfers Gains and Fund iture 2018 Balance Losses Balances Brought Carried Forward Forward £ £ £ £ £ £ **Unrestricted:** Designated (1) 123,087 3,380 -35 126,502 -**Endowments:** Expendable (3) 2,398,860 109,084 18,129 2,505,909 (20, 164)_ Permanent (4) 294,998 2,706 297,704 -**Total Funds** 2,816,945 112,464 (20, 164)20,870 2,930,115 -

9. Movement in Funds (continued)

Movement in Funds of charity 2 – The City of London School Scholarships & Prize Fund

At 31 March	Fund	Income	Expend-	Transfers	Gains and	Fund
2019	Balance		iture		Losses	Balances
	Brought					Carried
	Forward					Forward
	£	£	£	£	£	£
Restricted (2)	143,430	3,886	-	-	(1,056)	146,260
Endowment:						
Expendable (3)	949,732	34,770	(1,694)	-	(8,793)	974,015
Total Funds	1,093,162	38,656	(1,694)	-	(9,849)	1,120,275

At 31 March	Fund	Income	Expend-	Transfers	Gains and	Fund
2018	Balance		iture		Losses	Balances
	Brought					Carried
	Forward					Forward
	£	£	£	£	£	£
Restricted (2)	140,399	3,274	(180)	-	(63)	143,430
Endowment:						
Expendable (3)	913,338	31,473	(2,789)	-	7,710	949,732
Total Funds	1,053,737	34,747	(1,694)	-	7,647	1,093,162

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

10. Movement in Funds (continued)

Notes to the funds:

1. Unrestricted Designated Fund

This relates to the bequest of from the estate of Rodney FitzGerald which is to be held as an unrestricted designated fund. The purpose of this fund is to provide support in the form of bursaries to students with sporting ability. Planned use comprises the distribution of bursary awards to students with sporting ability.

2. Restricted Fund

This relates to the bequest from the estate of Ronald Charles Sansom which is to be invested as a restricted fund. The purpose of this fund is to relieve poverty, of pupils who hold a scholarship or bursary, by funding the additional necessary costs associated with schooling. Planned use comprises the distribution of the income to relieve poverty of pupils who hold a scholarship or bursary, with the additional necessary costs associated with schooling.

3. Endowment Fund - Expendable

The charity's governing Scheme identified that the property of all charities identified in Part 1 of Schedule 1 to the Scheme be held as expendable endowment by The City of London School Bursary Fund "charity 1", and the property of all charities identified in Schedule 2 to the Scheme be held as expendable endowment by The City of London School Scholarships and Prizes Fund "charity 2". The purpose of this fund is to provide support in the form of bursaries and other forms of financial assistance, and the provision of scholarships, prizes or other suitable rewards or marks of distinction in accordance with the objectives of the charity. Planned use comprises the award of bursaries and other forms of financial assistance, and the provision, with any surplus income carried forward to be used in subsequent years. Awards are funded by donations, legacies and any income generated from The City of London Charities Pool as a result of the investment of such donations.

4. Endowment Fund - Permanent

The charity's governing Scheme identified that 11 scholarship and prize funds, as detailed in Part 2 of Schedule 1 to the Scheme, be held as permanent endowment by The City of London School Bursary Fund "charity 1". The permanent endowment of the 11 scholarship and prize funds comprises 33,830 Charities Pool units. The purpose of this fund is to maintain the capital base of the charity. Planned use comprises the investment of the original endowment to the charity in the City of London Charities Pool, and the recognition of any gains or losses on revaluation of the investments at their current market value.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

11. Details of related parties and wider networks

The City of London Corporation is also the Trustee of a number of other Charitable Trusts. With the exception of the City of London Charities Pool, these Trusts do not undertake transactions with the City of London School Bursary Fund. A full list of these Trusts is available on application to the Chamberlain of London.

The Trust has investments in the City of London Charities Pool of which the City of London Corporation is also the Trustee. Investment income from the Charities Pool in 2018/19 amounted to $\pounds139,145$ (2017/18: $\pounds125,479$).

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 24

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 26

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27c

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27d

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27e

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27f

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27g

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27h

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27i

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27j

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27k

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27I

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27m

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27n

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27o

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27p

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27q

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 27r

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 28

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.